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St Nicholas Church, Child Okeford A Short History

The Church Building

It is possible that there was a charch on this site in Saxon times, and we know that a church was
built here about 1250-70. The record of Rectors of Child Okeford Superior and of Child Okeford
Inferior, which begins in 1297, is to be found on the wall of the South Aisle, just to the right of the
Church door.

The founding of St Nicholas Church

In 1297 Galfrid de Stocks was presented to the Parish as priest, by his relative Roger de Stocks,
who held the land under the King. The List of Rectors shows the names of those who have held
the living ever since then.

Most of our Parish Registers of Baptisms, Banns and Marriages, and Burials are kept at the
County Records Office in Dorchester, Dorset. These go back to 1652/3 for this parish. (Our
Church plans of 1887 & 1888, and some other documents, are held at Trowbridge, as are many of
the Salisbury Diocesan Ecclesiastical Records.)

Dorset was in the Diocese of Bristol from 1543 to 1836, but many records were destroyed in the
Bristol Riots, and also in 1731 in the Great Fire of Blandford. Our local records were kept in the
Sub-Registry Office of the Bristol Diocese in Blandford, and so many documents perished.

The only record of the size of the church building from those days are the 1877 plans, drawn as
preparation for the re-building of most of the church in 1878-79. [see below - Changes to the building}

The Building

The South Porch is the; main entrance to the church. As you come in, you will step over a stone
floor slab said to have been marked in memory of Roger Wood. [t is late 17" Century. In the
1970°s the words Roger and Wood could still be seen, but alas ro longer.

Above the door is a carving which depicts St Nicholas; our Patron Saint. The three maidens in
the carving over the South Porch doorway refer to the story of three sisters to whom St Nicholas
gave marriage dowries. Their father was too poor to be able to provide for them this essential pre-
requisite to marriage. A variation of the story is that because of poverty, the family was about to
sell its children as slaves. The Bishop Nicholas secretly threw three purses of gold into their
house.

The folding mesh doors which are used in summer to keep out insects, birds and bats, were given
in memory of Stanley Tuffin of Gold Hill. He was a long serving member of the Choir and also
the Crucifer who led the Choir at the start of services and on other official occasions.

The Tower is the oldest remaining part of the church building, possibly dating from the late 15®
or early 16" C entury, |Sce Nicholaus Pevsner, 1972, Buildings of England]. Almost all the rest of the
building is Victorian.

The outside of the Tower is built of greensand ashlar - blocks of cut greensand rock. The inside

seems to be chalk clunch. Much of the tracery is Ham Hill stone, a kind of shelly limestone from
Somerset. Geologically, this was formed within the beds of Bridport and Yeovil sandstones.
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